MICHAEL J. TESTANI
Acting Superintendent of Schools

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

JOHN R. WELDON
Chairman

HERNAN ILLINGWORTH
Vice-Chairman

BOBBI BROWN
Secretary

Bridgeport, Connecticut

Board Members:

BOARD OF EDUCATION

City Hall - 45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604

“Changing Futures and Achieving Excellence Together”

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD cont.

SYBIL ALLEN
ALBERT BENEJAN
JOSEPH J. LOMBARD
JESSICA MARTINEZ
JOSEPH SOKOLOVIC

CHRIS TAYLOR

May 22, 2020

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Education will be held on Tuesday, May 26, 2020, at

6:30 p.m. via a Microsoft Teams Live Broadcast event.

Public viewing access to the

meeting will be made available through https://www.bridgeportedu.net/stream.

Bobbi Brown
Board of Education Secretary




BRIDGEPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION
AGENDA OF REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING

Monday, May 26, 2020 — 6:30 P.M.
Microsoft Teams Live Broadcast Event
Bridgeport, CT

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Public Comment (Agenda Items Only)

o 0w Dbd e

Approval of Board Minutes
a) 5/11/20 Regular Meeting

Chairman’s Report

o

7. Committee Reports/Referrals
a) Facilities
b) Finance
c) Governance
d) Teaching and Learning
e) Personnel
f) Students & Families
g) Contracts
h) Ad-Hoc Committee: GCS Males of Color
8. Superintendent’s Report
a) General Report
b) Public Q&A Regarding District Operations During COVID-19
9. Old Business — None to be Transacted
10. New Business
a) Discussion and Possible Action to Solicit Bids for Non-Commaodity, Commercial Food, Paper Goods and
Cleaning Supplies for the 2020-2021 School Year
b) Discussion and Approval of Addendum 1 to Contract for Transportation Services with We Transport, LLC
11. Adjourn



Monday, May 11, 2020

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BRIDGEPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION, held May 11,
2020, by video and audio conference call, Bridgeport,
Connecticut.

The meeting was called to order at 6:32 p.m. Present were
Chair John Weldon, Vice Chair Hernan lllingwerth, Secretary
Bobbi Brown, Joseph Sokolovic JoSeph Lombard, Albert
Benejan and Sybil Allen.

Acting Superintendent Michael J. Testaniwas present.

Jeffrey Postolowski, IT director; reported no‘members of the
public had signed up for public comment.

APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES:

Ms. Allensmoved,to approve the minutes of the Regular
Meeting of April'27»2020.“The motion was seconded by Mr.
lllingworth and unanimously approved.

CHAIR REPORT:

Mr. Weldon askedythere be a moment of silence in
observance of those people who have succumbed to
COVID-19 and in empathy for the families they have left
behind.

Mr. Weldon said the district continues operate with distance

learning, which is a different way of doing things. He said he
believed everyone was doing a great job under very adverse
conditions. He said the board recognizes how hard this is for
students, parents, and staff.



COMMMTTEE REPORTS/REFERRALS:

Mr. lllingworth said the Facilities Committee met on May 4th.
He said the facilities department has worked over and
beyond cleaning schools. Unfortunately, the department is
over budget by about $74,000 because of all the extra
activity.

Mr. Sokolovic said the Finance Committee would meet on
Wednesday.

Mr. lllingworth said the Governance Committee will meet on
the first Monday in June.

Mr. Sokolovic said the Teaching & Learning Committee met
on May 6th and the itemstdiscussed will ceme up for
approval later in the agenda tonight. The ' next meeting will
be on May 19th.

Mr. Weldon said‘the, Personnel Committee will meet on
Wednesday to conduet interviews for executive level
positions.

Mr. Benejanreportedion the last Students & Families
Committee meeting: There was discussion of the PAC
leaders and theirlparent engagement expenditures. Monies
that are unspent, including for the parent convention, will be
rolled over into next year. The next meeting will be on May
28th.

Mr. Sokolovic said May 26th is the tentative date for the next
meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee on Great Cities
Schools/Males of Color.



SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT AND AGENDA:

Mr. Testani said he recognizes it has been incredibly difficult
time for students and families. He said adjustments to the
distance learning have been made after feedback from
students, teachers and parents. He said overall the district
had made a successful pivot on a dime to the distance
learning.

Mr. Testani said as the weather gets better the challenge is
going to be even greater. He said there is{planning
underway to get staff in the buildings In'a safe and
responsible way to retrieve their belongings and prepare
their classrooms for summer cleaning, and a responsible
way of parents and students te‘come, back to retrieve
belongings and any medication stored'in the nurses’ offices.

Mr. Testani said last week was Teacher Appreciation Week
and he added it wasfnever too late tordrop a teacher a note
of appreciationaHe said the district put out a thank you to
teachers on the website.

Mr. Testani said planning for an outdoor high school
graduation in,early July is underway.

Mr. Testani said summer camps and summer school will be
opened on June 29th with specific guidelines to be released
by the state. He said he has urged a limitation on the
number of people allowed in school buildings during the
camps.

Mr. Weldon asked that Mr. Testani keep everyone updated
In upcoming weeks on the status of summer activities.



Mr. Testani said he did a Facebook Live event last Friday
and some tweaks will be made to allow public questions for
this coming Friday. He thanked Mr. Benejan and Angel
Resto for passing out donated masks to parents. He also
thanked an anonymous Trumbull Mall merchant donated
footwear to food and nutrition employees in the district.

Ms. Brown said Mr. Testani did a good job on an event with
Faith Acts today, especially in providing direction in the way
the district is going. Mr. Weldon said he agreed.

In response to a question, Mr. Testanisaid the“health and
safety guidelines for the summer willdimit,gatheringsito no
more than ten people. He said job _postingsifor summer
teaching have gone out and itis'stressed that'the teachers
must be well versed in the Teams platferm.

Mr. Benejan praised Mr. Testani Facebook event today with
Faith Acts and said thexboard was here to support him.

Mr. Lambard said he believed the board had peace of mind
because Mr. Testani would be continuing as superintendent
and not'having to pass the baton to another person at this
difficult time.

In response to a quéstion, Mr. Testani said he had built
some strong relationships with other superintendents in the
state and there have been discussions about what reopening
schools in the fall would look like. Ideas have included
alternating days for students attending classes. He said he
realized anything out of the normal would be an incredible
burden on families.

In response to a question, Mr. Testani said over 5,000
devices had been distributed. He said work has been going



on with schools to see how many devices remain in
buildings, although some may not be operable. He said it
looks like the first 40 percent of devices from the Connecticut
Partnership will be delivered at the end of May for use in the
next school year. He noted printed materials for the younger
learners has been the preferred method for parents.

In response to a question, Mr. Testani said a reopening
committee would be put together after, state guidelines are
released on May 15th. Mr. Sokolovic suggested there be
planning for the eventuality that scheols do not,open on
schedule in the fall.

Mr. Weldon noted the shutdown started off as two weeks
and it has morphed into three and‘@ahalf monthss He said the
summer was a good time to look back at what'we went
through.

Mr. Postolowski said'ne members-ofithe public have
submitteds«questiens to the,superintendent tonight.

NEW BUSINESS:

The next item was onthe healthy food certification for school
year 2020-21. Mr. Weldon said this and the following two
items are done anndally.

John Gerrity, director of food and nutrition, was present. Mr.
Gerrity said the district and the board would agree to comply
with the Connecticut nutrition standards for all food items
offered for sale to students, which is almost exclusively done
at the high schools. He said the board could also vote for
exemptions for after-school events.



Mr. Sokolovic moved that “pursuant to Connecticut General
Statutes Section 10-215f, the Bridgeport Board of Education
certifies that all food items offered for sale to students in the
schools under its jurisdiction, and not exempted from the
Connecticut Nutrition Standards published by the
Connecticut State Department of Education, will comply with
the Connecticut Nutrition Standards during the period of July
1, 2020, through June 30, 2021, and that this certification
shall include all food for sale to students separately from
reimbursable meals, at all times and from-all sources,
including but not limited to school steres, vending machines,
school cafeterias, culinary programs, and any fundraising
activities on school premises sponsored by the school or
non-school organizations and groups.”

The motion was seconded by Ms. Allen.

In response to a question, Mr. Gerrity said the provision
covered what are called school stores.

The motion wastunanimously approved.

The next agenda item was on food exemptions to the
healthy foad certifications. Mr. lllingworth moved “the Board
of Education‘will allow the sale to students of food items that
do not meet the.Connecticut Nutrition Standards provided
that the following conditions are met: (1) The sale is in
connection with an event occurring after the end of the
regular school day or on the weekend; (2) The sale is at the
location of the event; and (3) The food items are not sold
from vending machines or school stores.

“A ‘event’ is an occurrence that involves more than just a
regularly scheduled practice, meeting or extracurricular
activity. For example, soccer games, school plays,



interscholastic debates, are events, but soccer practices,
play rehearsals and debate team meetings are not. The
‘regular school day’ is the period from midnight before to 30
minutes after the end of the official school day. ‘Location’
means where the event is being held and must be the same
place as the food sales.”

The motion was seconded by Ms. Allen and unanimously
approved.

The next agenda was on beverage exemptions,to the
healthy food certification. Ms. Allenmoved ‘thatithe Board
of Education of the City of Bridgeport'wilhallow the sale to
students of beverages not listed in Section 10-221q of the
Connecticut General Statutes provided thatthe, following
conditions are met: (1) That the sale is,in connection with an
event occurring after the end of the regulasschool day or on
the weekend; (2) The sale’is at the location of the event; and
(3) The beverages are not sold froma vending machine or
school store.”

“A ‘event’ is an occurrence that involves more than just a
regularly scheduled practice, meeting or extracurricular
activity. The ‘school day’is the period from midnight before
to 30 minutes after the end of the official school day.
‘Location’ means where the event is being held and must be
the same place as the beverage sales.”

The motion was seconded by Mr. Sokolovic and
unanimously approved.

The next agenda item was on grading for school year 2019-
20 in Marking Period 4.



Mr. Testani said this was discussed at the Teaching &
Learning Committee meeting and passed unanimously. He
said all the options being discussed around the state were
discussed, with input received from high schools students,
teachers and administrators.

Mr., Testani said there would be a three-pronged grading
system. There will be a larger area for a narrative for
teachers on elementary report cardsdo discussithe progress
the child made prior to school closdre and any commentary
since the closure. For middle schaol and high'schools there
would be three levels: (1) pass; (2) fail;(3) and‘passing with
distinction. He said a numerical grade of'55 would be applied
to failure; a 75 would be passing; and 90or passing with
distinction.

Mr. Testani said instead @f a final exam there will be an
assignment or project due within a week that did not require
students to venture gutito stores to purchase anything.

Ms. Allen movedto,accept the proposed grading as
approved by the Teaching & Learning Committee and
recommended by the superintendent for Marking Period 4 of
the 2019-2020 school year.” The motion was seconded by
Ms. Brown andhunanimously approved.

The next agenda item was on a Grades K-3 literacy
assessment. Mr. Testani said the assessment would use the
DIBELS materials as was presented by Dr. Jenkins,
executive director of early childhood. at the Teaching &
Learning Committee.

Dr. Jenkins said the assessment would be administered
three times a year. The assessment takes about six minutes
per child to administer and about 15 to 20 minutes for



teachers to enter data, which helps to guide instruction. She
said the cost would be $1 per child per year, which goes to
the University of Oregon to maintain the platform.

Ms. Allen moved “to accept the proposed Grade K-3 literacy
assessment system as referred by the Teaching & Learning
Committee and as proposed and described by Dr. Melissa
Jenkins.” The motion was seconded by Mr. Sokolovic and
unanimously approved.

The next agenda item was on a Grade K-8 math program.
Mr. Sokolovic said the item came out of the Teaching &
Learning Committee. Mr. Testani said we,are the'end of a
six-year curriculum renewal cycle, so Mr.= Planas put
together a team of teachers and administrators,te look at
renewal options and choose the best option.

Herminio Planas, executive director of elementary education,
said the committee met from Octoberto February and
considerediévery. available textbook option. The final two
choiceswere sent te all teachers in Grades 6 to 8 and they
voted for their preferred choice. The book selected was Into
Math.

Mr. Planas saidhthe cost of Into Math was very similar to the
alternative option.

In response to a question, Mr. Planas said he agreed with
Mr. Illingworth that workbooks are very important for math
and the purchase will include all necessary consumables.

In response to a question, Mr. Planas said new textbooks
were needed because the current books had been in use for
almost ten years and were written before Common Core
standards came out.



10

Mr. Sokolovic moved “to adopt the Grade 6-8 math program
as referred to this board by the Teaching & Learning
committee and as proposed by Mr. Planas.” The motion
was seconded by Ms. Allen and unanimously approved.

The next agenda item was suspending the deselection of
magnet school students for the 2019-20 school year.

Mr. Testani said this was also discussed at the Teaching &
Learning Committee and there was a vote to suspend
deselection from magnet programs due to the school
closure. He said it was felt it was notfairito deselectany
children given the current situation.

Mr. lllingworth said he agreed with the proposal and urged
students who might havedallen into this category be
provided with interventions as soon as they are available.
Mr. Testani said that'woeuld be the'case.

Mr. Testani saida few deselections were made prior to
closurefor non-academic reasons involving incidents such
as drugs or alcohol, and would not be applicable to the
revised policy.

Mr. Illingworth moved “to suspend the deselection of magnet
school students for academic purposes for the 2019-20
school year.” The motion was seconded by Mr. Sokolovic
and unanimously approved.

Mr. Postolowski reported that no members of the public
submitted a question about COVID-19 school closures.

Mr. Sokolovic moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion
was seconded by Ms. Allen and unanimously approved.



The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

John McLeod

Q‘&

11



Bridgeport Public Schools Staff Movements

As of

May 26, 2020

l. RESIGNATIONS

NAME SCHOOL/POSITION EFFECTIVE REASON
Laima Peterson Black Rock School/Elementary 06/25/2020 Personal
Teacher Gr. 4
Katelyn Moore Bridgeport Military 06/25/2020 Personal
Academy/Spanish Teacher
Elizabeth A. Mackenzie Discovery Magnet/ Speech 06/25/2020 Personal
Language Pathologist
Olivia Pocock Thomas Hooker School/English 06/25/2020 Personal
Teacher
1. RESIGNATIONS (other than certified staff)
NAME SCHOOL/POSITION EFFECTIVE REASON
Priscilla Lopez James Curiale School/ Nurse 06/19/2020 Personal
. RETIREMENTS
NAME LOCATION POSITION EFFECTIVE
Suzanne L. Cicale Blackham School Special Education Resource Teacher 06/30/2020
Diane Reising-Wendler Columbus School Kindergarten Teacher 07/01/2020

V. TERMINATIONS

NAME SCHOOL/POSITION EFFECTIVE REASON

Tekenya Monteiro BPT Learning Center/School 05/26/2020 Termination
Social Worker

Rita Brown-Holloway Traveler/School Psychologist 05/26/2020 Termination




City of Bridgeport, Connecticut

THOMAS E. CARROLL NUTRITION CENTER
BOARD OF EDUCATION—FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES

113 Federal Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06606-5225 ¢ Telephone 203 275-1200 & 203 275-1201
Fax: Office 203 337-0165 & 203 337-0096 ¢ Shipping 203 337-0164 & Kitchen Office 203 337-0147

John M. Gerrity — Director E-mail: Nutrition@bridgeportedu.net
Nichola Hall, MBA— Assistant Director

MEMO TO: Board of Education
FROM: John M. Gerrity, Director of Food & Nutrition Services
DATE: May 21, 2020

SUBJECT:  Request for Authorization to Solicit Bids for Non-Commadity, Commercial Food,
Paper Goods and Cleaning Supplies for the 2020-2021 School Year

The Bridgeport Food and Nutrition Services is requesting discussion and possible action from
the Board of Education to authorize the solicitation of bids for non-commodity, commercial food,
paper and cleaning supplies. The bid categories under this solicitation would be:

o bakery (bread & rolls)
e Dbreakfast items
e condiments

o fruit
e groceries
e juice

e milk & dairy products
e paper and cleaning supplies
e snack items

Soliciting these items at this time will allow for bids to be received, and an award to be made by

the Board, in sufficient time for these items to be under contract for purchase when the 2020-
2021 begins in late August 2020.

A Partner in Education — We serve Education Every Day


mailto:Nutrition@bridgeportedu.net

SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AGREEMENT
COVID-19 ADDENDUM

THIS ADDENDUM is made by and entered into this __ day of May, 2020, by and
between the BRIDGEPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION (the "District") and WE TRANSPORT,
LLC ("Contractor") (the District and the Contractor are hereinafter referred to collectively as the
"Parties"” or individual as a "Party").

RECITALS:

A. The District and the Contractor are Parties to a contract dated May 2, 2019 for the
provision of school transportation services by Contractor for the Bridgeport
Public Schools (the "Contract").

B. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the related declaration of a public
health and civil preparedness emergency on March 10, 2020 by Governor
Lamont, the Bridgeport schools have been closed since March 13, 2020, are
presently scheduled to remain closed through May 20, 2020, and possibly for the
remainder of the school year.

C. As a result, the District does not presently have a need for school bus services.

D. Of the 180 school days scheduled for 2019-20, school was in session from August
29, 2019 through March 12, 2020, for a total of 118 days. Contractor has been or
will be paid for those days, however, Contractor has not been paid for the days it
has not provided services. The average daily rate under the Contract is presently
$113,751.11 per day for basic daily home to school services.

E. Pursuant to the Federal CARES Act and the Governor's Executive Order 7R,
boards of education are encouraged to enter into amendments to their bus
contracts providing for the continued payment to transportation providers so they
can compensate their active employees and continue any health insurance benefits
they were previously receiving, if any, and pay other fleet cost still being incurred
by the Contractor in order to maintain readiness for when school opens.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. For the portion of the 2019-20 school year commencing on March 13, 2020, the
District shall pay the Contractor as hereinafter provided.

{01359963.DOCX Ver. 1} Page 1 of 3



2. Notwithstanding the Contract to the contrary, during the period school is not in
session the rates shall be reduced to reflect only the following expenses actually
incurred by the Contractor:

a. actual wages being paid to active drivers;
FICA and other payroll costs for such employees;

C. the cost of providing health insurance to such employees if previously
provided; and

d. the cost of maintaining the fleet in a readiness state.

Specifically excluded are: (i) all direct costs factored into the rates in the Contract
which the Contractor is not incurring during the shutdown, such as fuel (ii)
indirect costs attributed to the Contract by a corporate parent or similar entity, and
(iii) profit. It shall also not include additional or supplemental services such as
athletics and extended day activities.

The Parties have agreed that the above represents 55% of the existing rates,
therefore, the daily rate shall be reduced to $62,563.11, which shall be paid by the
District to the Contractor for 62 additional days for the 2019-20 school year.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event school should reopen for the 2019-20
school year, the full rate shall be paid for the portion of the 62 days when school
transportation is provided.

3. All other provisions of the Contract shall remain in effect.

4. The Contractor shall provide, upon request by the District, an attestation of the
above costs in the form of a certified payroll and profit/loss statement or similar
document showing the costs attributed to the Contract for the 2019-20 school
year. The Parties acknowledge that any such documentation shall be considered
proprietary and confidential to the Contractor and shall not be released by the
Board to a third party unless ordered to do so by the Freedom of Information
Commission or a court of competent jurisdiction. The Board shall make every
reasonable effort to resist disclosing such documentation consistent with the law,
and shall notify the Contractor of any request for such.

5. This Addendum shall terminate on the earlier of June 30, 2020, or the date on

which schools are reopened, if at all, for the 2019-20 school year. Unless a
further Addendum is required for the 2020-21 school year, the Contract shall

{01359963.DOCX Ver. 1} Page 1 of 3



remain in full force and effect for 2020-21 and the balance of the term of the
Contract.

6. Nothing in this Addendum shall be deemed to be a waiver by either Party of its
rights under the Contract, except as specifically provided for herein for the
remainder of the 2019-20 school year.

Bridgeport Board of Education WE Transport, LLC

By By

Duly Authorized Duly Authorized

{01359963.DOCX Ver. 1} Page 1 of 3





